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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFP SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	201908139 IT Service Management (ITSM) Solution

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Department of Administrative and Financial Services
Office of Information Technology

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	01/31/2020

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	02/24/2020

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	03/13/2020

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov

	Unless specifically addressed below, all other provisions and clauses of the RFP remain unchanged.




Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answers

	Row Num
	Question
	Answer

	1. 
	Will there be a Bidder’s Conference?
	No.  See Amendment 1.

	2. 
	How many are full time IT Help Desk Agents working tickets during your standard work day?
	Refer to Part 1.A Page 6 of the RFP

	3. 
	How many IT employees will use the system on a part time bases such as level 2, level 3, application team, network team members, etc.?  These people update tickets on a part time basis?
	Refer to Part 1.A Page 6 of the RFP

	4. 
	What are the hours of each shift of the help Desk?
	Three 8 hours shifts 24x7

	5. 
	Are you able to determine the maximum/peak amount of users in the system at one time?

	Yes. 

	6. 
	You stated the following in the RFP: 15 Fixed Agent Licenses- 150 Concurrent Agent Licenses assigned to 641. Does this license count currently meet your needs or are you over or under licensed. 
	Yes.

	7. 
	For the purposes of providing implementation cost estimates, which integrations are required during implementation noted on page 41 and 42 and what type of integration is need for each such as email, bi-directional integration, single directional integration.
	See instructions at top of Page 40, Technical Requirements and Questions.

	8. 
	On page 14 you stated the following: Scope of Work: Day-to-day operations of new ITSM solution, including application administration, reporting, support and maintenance, remote hosting, and software and licensing.
· Are you looking to outsource the day to day operations of the service desk staff? Please provide details
· Are you looking to outsource the service desk administration, including adding users, creating workflows and managing reports?  Please provide details

· Please explain what you require as it relates to software and licensing with specifics. 
	That state is not looking to outsource the service desk or service desk administration.
Vendors should provide any software and licensing costs in the proposed solution.



	9. 
	Does State of Maine have any reservations about Cloud based ITSM solution? Will cloud based offering be accepted if it meets requirements as mentioned in RFP
	As outlined in the RFP, cloud solutions are acceptable.

	10. 
	Is there any requirement to migrate data from BMC Footprints to proposed ITSM platform? Means does State of Maine expect Greenfield implementation or Brownfield implementations 
	The Department does not plan to migrate historical data to the new ITSM platform. 

	11. 
	What are the existing configured ITSM modules on BMC Footprints?
	The Department is interested in the components as outlined in Part II, Page 9 of the RFP.

	12. 
	State of Maine needs only tool implementation or is there any requirement to implement processes as well (especially for Project & portfolio management)? If requirement is only around ITSM platform, then will State Of Maine provide To-BE processes or it would be responsibility of bidder
	Part II, B. Phase 1 (page 10) – Project Initiation and Discovery details the responsibility of the bidder. 

	13. 
	It is mentioned as requirement to document BMC Footprint workflows. Is it ok to assume that State of Maine has BMC Footprints team who can help to share the workflows information! Also we assume that adequate license and logistics will be there in order to study BMC Footprints workflows and data
	Yes. 

	14. 
	Is there any CMDB discovery solution in place?
	No. 

	15. 
	What is the anticipated size of Project & Portfolio Team? We need this for License cost perspective
	Vendor should provide a rate structure including per person and any volume discounts

	16. 
	Is it possible to get the anticipated number of users for Financial management
	Vendor should provide a rate structure including per person and any volume discounts

	17. 
	Is it possible to get the anticipated number of users for Project & Portfolio management
	Vendor should provide a rate structure including per person and any volume discounts

	18. 
	Is there any inflight project in progress on Service Management Platform?
	No

	19. 
	“Identify and document current BMC Footprints workflows”

Can State provide more information on:

a) Additional new features/ customizations added to BMC Footprints by the state till now

b) Version of BMC Footprints

c) Number of custom reports created so far.
	As described in Part II. B. Phase 1 – Projection Initiation and Discovery, this work will be performed during the discovery phase of the project.

	20. 
	Vendor Project Resources: Will Vendor be allowed to use remote resources for project execution? Can some of remote resources be outside US to support the project? 
	No.

	21. 
	Can State extend the submission deadline by 1 week, this will allow sufficient time for vendors to accommodate proposal changes based on State’s answers to Vendor questions 
	See Amendment 2.

	22. 
	In your RFP you refer to a pre-proposal conference however there are no details provided. Is there a pre-proposal conference?
	There is no bidder’s conference. See Amendment 1.

	23. 
	You have an internal PMO office, why are you asking vendors to provide all the Project Management documents? We are wondering why you are looking to spend money with the vendor rather than utilize internal resources? Note - nearly all customers that implement our ITSM system use their internal Project Manager to prepare a majority of the Project documents.
	The Department is looking for an Implementation Partner.  See Amendment 2.

	24. 
	You have requested a Business Analyst be assigned from the vendor. Similar to the question about Project Management, why are you looking for the vendor to provide a BA versus use your internal resources? Nearly all customers that implement our ITSM system use their internal Business Analyst.
	The Department is looking for an Implementation Partner.  See Amendment 2.

	25. 
	On page 11, Phase 2 Implementation, what processes/capabilities should we include in our cost estimates (i.e. Incident, Request, Change, Self-Service etc.)?
	See Part II Scope of Services (page 9) 

	26. 
	On page 11, Phase 2 Implementation, what integrations should we include in our cost estimates (i.e. AD, email etc.)?
	See Technical Requirement 22 (TR-22 page 41)

	27. 
	For importing of user/employee contact data what sources do you have that we will need to 
	This information will be shared with the successful bidder.

	28. 
	What Chat and Remote Access tools do you currently own?
	This information will be shared with the successful bidder.

	29. 
	What is your single sign-on solution for the state of Maine
	Active Directory.

	30. 
	What is your identity provider (IDP) ? (e.g. AD, Azure ADFS)
	The Department can support Microsoft ADFS or Azure Enterprise Applications or LDAP proxy connections.

	31. 
	What are your data retention policies and what regulations influence data retention policies?
	https://www.maine.gov/sos/arc/records/state/policy.html

	32. 
	What are your disaster recovery policies and what regulations influence the disaster recovery process?
	https://www.maine.gov/oit/policies/BusinessContinuityDisasterRecoveryPolicy.pdf

	33. 
	What will be happening to the footprint closed tickets do we need to have a data retention policy in the new improved solution?
	The Department does not plan to migrate historical data to the new ITSM platform.

	34. 
	Are the ITIL process documented for your organization according to your regulations and policies that govern the State of Maine?
	No.

	35. 
	Does asset management include Software and Hardware management? 
	Yes.

	36. 
	What is the solution that you are using for software management solutions?
	The Department uses various custom applications.

	37. 
	What is your current CMDB that was developed from was it manual data or discovered data by BMC products?
	Manually developed.

	38. 
	Would the state of Maine welcome SaaS solution instead of on-premise solutions?
	As long as it is in accordance with all the OIT policies listed in Appendix H.

	39. 
	Who is your voice over IP provider? 
	This information will be shared with the successful bidder.

	40. 
	What is your state of CMMI and ITSM v3/4 evolution for the organization?
	In process.

	41. 
	What are your organization policies on working from home, access to data?
	Employees and vendors are required to connect to the state network via a VPN connection and comply with all data compliance regulations.

	42. 
	Is there proxy encryption on-site on the current FootPrint solution so the data cannot be seen through it does not go through?
	See Appendix H Supporting Policy Documents – Security Policy.

	43. 
	How many footprint custom workflow process will be moved to this new solution?
	The Department desires to implement ITIL best practices.

	44. 
	Does the State want all pages numbered consecutively within each File or throughout all Files (File #’s 1 - 4)? For example, File #1, pages 1-60; File #2, pages 1-75, etc.
	Yes. Start all files at page 1.

	45. 
	Would the State please describe the current automated call distribution (ACD), Interactive Voice Response (IVR), and Computer Telephony Integration (CTI) architectures?


	This information will be shared with the successful bidder.

	46. 
	Would the State please provide the Average Handle Time, Average Speed of Answer, First Call Resolution, and CSAT scores for the current environment.


	This information will be shared with the successful bidder.

	47. 
	Would the State please provide the top 5 incident categories in the current service desk? 
	1. Password resets/unlock accounts

2. Application issues

3. Hardware/Software issues

4. Microsoft products

5. Mobile devices

	48. 
	What are the current contact channels to the service desk?  


	Email and phone.

	49. 
	Does the State currently have a password reset tool? If yes, please provide the name of the tool and the number of interactions it resolves on a monthly basis.


	Yes. This information will be shared with the successful bidder.

	50. 
	What percentage of tickets today are managed using automation (requiring no human interaction)?


	None.

	51. 
	What tool is currently being used for asset management, change management, and configuration management?


	Asset Management uses Track-IT, Change Management uses Footprints and the Department does not have a configuration management tool.

	52. 
	What knowledge management tool is currently being used? 
	Confluence.

	53. 
	Would the State please provide the name of the current tools used for asset discovery and mapping?


	Asset Management uses Track-IT, Change Management uses Footprints and the Department does not have a configuration management tool.

	54. 
	Would the State accept a company’s Annual Report with audited financial statements in lieu of a Dun & Bradstreet Report?
	No.

	55. 
	Is training limited to the 475 IT staff members?


	Yes.

	56. 
	How are audience members distributed throughout the State?

a. Number of training participants by zone/region and central location within the zone/region?


	Training can be administered in a central location. The training audience is located throughout the state.

	57. 
	Does the State employ its own training staff?  If so, how many?


	No.

	58. 
	Would the State please describe the number of training facilities that might be available for training delivery?

a. Do these training facilities include workstations equipped with CPU, monitors, keyboard, and mice? 

b. What is the average number of workstations per training facility/room? 

c. Are these training facilities equipped with large-screen monitors or Hi-Def projection and screens?


	Spaces can be used throughout state offices for training. Staff would supply their own computers. Some meeting spaces are equipped with projectors and screens.

	59. 
	Proposals will be opened at the Burton M. Cross Office Building, 111 Sewall Street - 4th Floor, Augusta, Maine the following business day. 

Do we have to be present on the bid opening day? Else, will we be informed about the results immediately?
	No. See Part III and Part V of the RFP.

	60. 
	From a Named User license perspective with read/write access to the application, what is the total number of Named Users [Technicians, Managers and others who would need a read/write access to the application]?

Is it 475 named users or 641 named users?

Note: We do not offer concurrent license model.
	Currently 655 named agents, however any state user also has read/write access which equates to 12,000+ users.

	61. 
	Do you plan for IT asset management for:

· 900 servers? 

· 1200 applications?

· 15,400 laptops / desktops / tablets?

· 3750 mobile phones? 

· Also, do you need a Remote Control tool? How many computers? 15,400?

· Of the 475 or 641 named users how many will use the Remote Control feature?

· Also, do you need a Remote Chat tool? How many computers? 15,400?

· Of the 475 or 641 named users how many will use the Remote Chat feature?
We need to quote accordingly.
	Yes to the first 4 questions.

The Department currently has a remote control tool.

The Department currently has a remote chat tool.



	62. 
	The purpose of this RFP is to obtain a Commercial Off-The-Shelf (COTS) replacement software solution for the current ITSM application (BMC Footprints).

Will the current vendor and service provider participate in this RFP? Or, is it going to be a replacement?

Can you provide the current provider details?

What are the challenges you face today with the system?

When is the expiry date of the current contract?
	The Department chooses not to answer.

	63. 
	It is the Department’s intent for the initial solution to minimally include the asterisked required service components.

Among the non-asterixed service components, we may have a couple of features that are not compliant or not available as of now. Will the non-compliance with such features acceptable? How will they be evaluated / scored?

What is the timeline for implementing the non-asterixed service components?
	See Appendix G of the RFP.

	64. 
	We are OK with proposing the price quote for initial period. However, is it mandatory to provide a quote for Renewal Period 1 through 4 right now.
	Yes.

	65. 
	Itemized Component List – please explain with an example.

Software Requirements – please explain the scope.
	Refer to Scope of Work Steps 1 through 4. Page 9 of the RFP.

	66. 
	Software with both itemized and packaged modules will be considered. – please explain the terms itemized and packaged with an example in context.
	Itemized and packaged modules refer to the components listed in the ITSM Solution Strategy Objective (page 9). For example, a proposed system may be a single ITSM product which encompasses all the required service components (packaged) OR a proposed system may include a combination of software which addresses the required service components separately (itemized).

	67. 
	There is a detailed list of things to do from a project implementation / management perspective.
We are IT help desk COTS software vendor. We restrict our scope of offering to supply, installation and configuration of the software that includes Training for 3 or 4 days and onboarding / implementation consultancy of about 2 to 3 weeks max. We then support your admin / configuration team over email/phone and remote sessions. Being a COTS software, these timelines are sufficient. Given this, please confirm if this model is acceptable to you/this RFP scope. [We do not need a typical Project Management approach.].
	The Department is looking for an Implementation Partner.  See Amendment 2.
Bidders should decide if their proposal can meet the requirements of the Department as specified in the RFP.

	68. 
	Data Migration Plan – What is the scope? What data has to be migrated?
	See Phase 1 – Project Initiation and Discovery

	69. 
	Communication Plan – pl elaborate.
	The Department declines to answer.

	70. 
	As-is and Future-state Process Maps and Gap Analyses – please explain each.
	The Department declines to answer.

	71. 
	Interface Analysis and API Documentation – pl explain interface analysis.
	The Department declines to answer.

	72. 
	The solution must be ADA (Americans with Disabilities Act), 508-compliant. – Is 508 compliance mandatory and a decider?
	508 Compliance is mandatory.

	73. 
	Once verified, the new ITSM solution will move into managed services mode. – We plan to offer the application is=n SaaS / cloud mode. pl explain what is managed services mode. 
	A SAAS solution may address the managed services requirements if the scope of work and deliverables can be met. It is up to Bidders to determine this and make their proposal.
Managed services mode means monitoring and maintaining the system and managing upgrades/fixes after go-live.

	74. 
	We normally propose a 2 day onsite training. Given that you may have 450 or 641 named users, can you tell us how many need to be actually trained? [We suggest 15 attendees per batch / 2 days.].

	475 IT staff members

	75. 
	Day-to-day operations of new ITSM solution, including application administration, reporting, support and maintenance, remote hosting, and software and licensing.
We do not offer day to day operations managed services. Is it OK if we provide the software, training and onboard implementation alone and you take care of the managed services with your service provider?
	Bidders should decide if their proposal can meet the requirements of the Department as specified in the RFP.

	76. 
	Are you looking at IT help desk or a help desk for all your other non-IT departments too?
Do you need Active Directory self service password solution?

Please explain your requirements on integration of our help desk tool with third party applications. [Use cases/examples would be good to have].

Can we provide hyperlinks pointing to our website for more information?
	No to all the questions.

Regarding the integration of a help desk tool, see Appendix F.

	77. 
	Was an RFI released earlier? Can you please tell us the participants? 
We did not participate during the RFI phase. Can we still participate in the RFP? 

When was a RFP released last for this requirement?

Have you/your team/department evaluated any ManageEngine product? If yes, please let us know which are the ones.
	There was no RFI for this product. This is the first RFP.

	78. 
	Under Proposal Format #7, it states the Proposal Cover Page should be signed by an authorized person. Do signatures need to be “wet” ink signatures?
	No. Electronic signatures are acceptable. The State of Maine recognizes ONLY DocuSign and AdobeSign as valid e-signatures. In the absence of one of these, a wet signature is required.

	79. 
	Can you provide more context into what kinds of documentation as well as what licensure is required for this opportunity?
	Refer to Section II, page 20.

	80. 
	There is a link provided to the Division of Procurement Services Forms page. Should vendors be downloading and reviewing the BP54 IT Contract Document? If so, will you be accepting exceptions to these terms as part of the RFP process? Are there any additional documents that our legal team should review as part of this RFP?
	The BP54-IT contract pertains to the successful bidder only.  See Part VI A.1 and B.1 

	81. 
	Is it a requirement that the chosen vendor be able to meet every aspect of these documents?
	All bidders are required to meet the OIT Policies in Appendix H.

	82. 
	Have you been working with any vendors or participated in any vendor demonstrations prior to the release of this RFP? If so can you state who those vendors were?
	No.

	83. 
	How many project managers will utilize this solution?
	Unknown. To be determined.

	84. 
	Does the state have a preferred contract vehicle (i.e. ITS58, GSA, NASCO, etc.)?
	The Department declines to answer.

	85. 
	Is there a regulatory reason for hosted infrastructure to be FedRAMP certified?
	No

	86. 
	If the hosted infrastructure is SSAE 16 SOC 2 Type II certified, do you still require FedRAMP?  If yes, do you understand the ramifications for using FedRAMP such as inability to use mobile features & limitations on integration points?
	No

	87. 
	RFP talks about replacing BMC Footprints software. Would state be open to replace it with other BMC products such as BMC Helix that are more advanced and cloud based? 


	All vendors are encouraged to respond to the RFP as written.

	88. 
	Part II, Section B. - Under the assumptions for both Phase 1 and Phase 2, it is stated that the existing BMC system will continue to be enhanced. Could the Department please confirm that during Phase 1 there will be a date after which these enhancements / requirements would be outside the scope of this engagement (i.e. enhancements arising after MM/DD/YYYY will not be included in Discovery and therefore Implementation)?
	Yes. 

	89. 
	Could the Department please provide a list of all existing integrations between BMC and other solutions?
	See Appendix F.

	90. 
	Could the Department please provide a high-level description for each integration that currently exists with BMC Footprints?
	See Appendix F.

	91. 
	Could the Department please provide a use case for each desired integration that is listed in Appendix F (TR-22a to TR22w)?
	Refer to Part II.B Phase 1. This is part of the discovery phase.

	92. 
	Could the Department please specify which of the integrations listed is in scope for the initial phase?
	Refer to Part II.B Phase 1. This is part of the discovery phase.

	93. 
	Does the Department have any tools currently to auto-discovery assets / devices?
	Yes.

	94. 
	What auto-discovery capabilities is the Department looking for in the solution that is not met by the existing tool set? (e.g. dependency mapping, software asset management)
	Refer to Part II.B Phase 1. This is part of the discovery phase.

	95. 
	Does the Department currently do KCS?
	Yes.

	96. 
	How many different Service Request types are in the existing BMC Footprints solution?
	Refer to Part II.B Phase 1. This is part of the discovery phase.

	97. 
	How many unique forms to support the Request Fulfillment are in the existing BMC Footprints solution?
	Refer to Part II.B Phase 1. This is part of the discovery phase.

	98. 
	What PPM capabilities is the Department looking for in the new solution?
	The Department desires to implement ITIL best practices.

	99. 
	What Release Management capabilities is the Department looking for in the new solution?
	The Department desires to implement ITIL best practices.

	100. 1
	Are there any Financial Management capabilities beyond FR-7 that the Department is interested in?
	Refer to Part II.B Phase 1. This is part of the discovery phase. There is potential for capability beyond what is listed in FR-7.

	101. 
	In terms of a Service Portal, is the Department looking for something on the simpler side with just a few buttons, links and tiles, or a more robust interface with a Service Catalog, Knowledge searching, links to other sites, etc.?
	The Department desires to implement ITIL best practices.

	102. 
	Is the Department looking to support multiple portals (different portals for different enterprise groups, for example), or just a single portal?
	Multiple portals.

	103. 
	Does the Department currently have a well-defined Service Catalog?
	The Department has a service catalog.

	104. 
	Are there any workflows the Department would be looking to automate for initial implementation? (Onboarding as an example)
	Refer to Part II.B Phase 1. This is part of the discovery phase.

	105. 
	Is IT support centralized or are there multiple service desks?
	The Department currently has multiple service desks.

	106. 
	Are there any specific event monitoring tool integrations needed for initial implementation?
	Refer to Part II.B Phase 1. This is part of the discovery phase.

	107. 
	What types of changes does the Department have? (Emergency, Normal, Standard, etc.)
	Refer to Part II.B Phase 1. This is part of the discovery phase.

	108. 
	Do the different change types all have unique approval workflows?
	There will be different workflows for each change type.

	109. 
	Is there another tool being used as a CMDB right now?
	No.

	110. 
	Would the Department want to do integrations with any discovery tools for initial implementation? 
	Refer to Part II.B Phase 1. This is part of the discovery phase.

	111. 
	Are you looking for any specific functionality? Automated reminders, lifecycle, etc.
	The Department desires to implement ITIL best practices.

	112. 
	How many/what types of CI’s would you be looking to track in the initial implementation of the solution?
	Refer to Part II.B Phase 1. This is part of the discovery phase.

	113. 
	Is there any structured review/approval process? If so, how many tiers of review/approval?
	Refer to Part II.B Phase 1. This is part of the discovery phase. The Department desires to implement ITIL best practices.

	114. 
	Does the Department need to secure articles between teams?  IE:  Only server team can see these articles, only network those, and everyone can see these?
	Yes.

	115. 
	Does the Department need to migrate your existing Knowledge Articles into the solution? If so, roughly how many?
	Yes. Refer to Part II.B Phase 1. This is part of the discovery phase.

	116. 
	What is the Department using today to manage projects?
	The Department uses multiple tools.

	117. 
	Is the Department looking to migrate any of your current projects to the new solution or have an integration with your current tool? Is this data that can be exported?
	No. 

	118. 
	What roles is the Department looking to have in the solution?
	The Department desires to implement ITIL best practices.

	119. 
	How many PM's does the Department have?
	This information will be shared with the successful bidder.

	120. 
	Any security requirements for who can view/access the data?
	Yes.

	121. 
	Are there any workflows the Department would be looking to automate for initial implementation?
	Refer to Part II.B Phase 1. This is part of the discovery phase.

	122. 
	Is the Department looking for any specific functionality? Automated reminders, lifecycle, etc.
	The Department desires to implement ITIL best practices.

	123. 
	Are there any integrations with financial systems that would be needed for initial implementation?
	Refer to Part II.B Phase 1. This is part of the discovery phase. There is potential for capability beyond what is listed in Appendix E, FR-7.

	124. 
	Of the 475 people in the IT department, how many people work on the help desk?
	Call Center – 16

EOM – 9

Field Techs – 16 

During an outage we can see up to about 25 staff manning phones between all three teams.

	125. 
	How many assets are you looking to manage in the solution?

For how many endpoints (desktops, laptops, servers) do you want to discover and monitor software compliance? Please provide breakdown by OS (e.g. Windows, Mac, Chrome, etc.)
	Refer to Part II.B Phase 1. This is part of the discovery phase.  

	126. 
	What tool(s) (if any) is/are being used to fulfill the functionalities being requested?
	The Department currently uses various tools.  

	127. 
	Is there a prevailing event/initiative/etc. that triggered the creation and release of this solicitation?
	The Department desires to implement ITIL best practices.

	128. 
	What ITSM processes does the Department currently have processes for?

1. Change Management

2. Incident Management

3. Problem Management

4. Service Request Management

5. Asset Management

6. Service Catalog Management

7. Discovery and Mapping

8. Financial Management

9. Knowledge Management

10. Project/Portfolio Management

11. Release Management

12. Configuration Management

13. Service Level Management
	The Department has processes for each of the services listed. Refer to Part II.B Phase 1. This is part of the discovery phase.  

	129. 
	If there is a particular process that the Department currently does not have established/documented, is the design of that process part of the scope of this project?
	Yes.

	130. 
	Is importing data from the existing systems within the scope of this project?  If so, what type of data (e.g. incidents, knowledge articles, asset information) need to be transferred? How many records are there and what type of format will the data be in?
	See Phase 1 – Project Initiation and Discovery

	131. 
	Will there be multiple business units (such as Facilities or HR) using this for processing tickets? If so, will these need to be broken out?  Will they need separate service catalogs? Will they need separate portals?
	Yes to all questions. Using best ITIL processes.

	132. 
	Has a budget for this project been determined?

If so, what is the budget for this project?
	The Department declines to answer.

	133. 
	Does the Department have a target Go-Live date for the selected solution?

What is driving this target date? (E.g. upcoming renewal of existing solution, budget cycle, etc.)
	The Department declines to answer.

	134. 
	Based on its procurement process, could the Department please provide the expected of when the vendor would be selected, and when the contract would be formally awarded/executed?
	Given a March 13, 2020 proposal due date, vendor selection would be announced in April 2020.  Contract discussions begin after award notification.

Refer to section B. General Provisions, pages 7 and 8.
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